
           

Historic Preservation
Commission Meeting

  
  

January 31, 2022 | 5:00 p.m.
Chandler Downtown Library, Copper Room South  
22 South Delaware Street, Chandler, AZ

  

 
  

Commission Members
Chair Devan Wastchak
Vice Chair Jeff Velasquez
Commissioner Cheryl Bell
Commissioner Erika Finbraaten
Commissioner Bryan Saba
Commissioner Kevin Weight

 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby
given to the members of the Historic Preservation Commission and to the general public that the
Historic Preservation Commission will hold a MEETING open to the public on Monday, January 31,
2022, at 5:00 p.m., at Chandler Downtown Library, Copper Room South, 22 South Delaware Street,
Chandler, AZ. One or more members of the Historic Preservation Commission may attend this
meeting by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and services
by contacting the City Clerk's office at 480-782-2181 (711 via AZRS). Please make requests in
advance as it affords the City time to accommodate the request.

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.  

Page 1 of 2 Historic Preservation Commission



Historic Preservation Commission
Regular Meeting Agenda - January 31, 2022

 
           

Call to Order/Roll Call
 

Scheduled/Unscheduled Public Appearances
Members of the audience may address any item not on the agenda. State Statute prohibits the Board or Commission from
discussing an item that is not on the agenda, but the Board or Commission does listen to your concerns and has staff follow
up on any questions you raise.
 

Action Agenda
 

1. Meeting Minutes of July 29, 2021, Historic Preservation Commission
  Move Historic Preservation Commission approve Historic Preservation Commission meeting

minutes of July 29, 2021.
 

2. Recommendation for Chandler to become a Certified Local Government (CLG) 
  Move Historic Preservation Commission recommend City Council approve Chandler to become a

Certified Local Government (CLG) 
 

3. PLH21-0093 Celoni Hospitality LLC, DBA Recreo, 28 South San Marcos Place, generally
located south of the southwest corner of Arizona Avenue and Chandler Boulevard

  Move Historic Preservation Commission approve PLH21-0093 Celoni Hospitality LLC, DBA
Recreo architectural plan review for new signage subject to conditions as recommended by
Planning staff

 

Calendar
 

4. The next regular meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission will be scheduled as
needed. 

  

 

Adjourn
 

Page 2 of 2 Historic Preservation Commission



ITEM  1 

Historic Preservation Commission      Development Services  Memo No.
HPC22-002
       

Date: 01/31/2022
To: Historic Preservation Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator
From: Julie San Miguel, Sr Administrative Assistant 
Subject: Meeting Minutes of July 29, 2021, Historic Preservation Commission

Proposed Motion:
Move Historic Preservation Commission approve Historic Preservation
Commission meeting minutes of July 29, 2021.

Attachments
July 29, 2021 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting Minutes 















































ITEM  2 

Historic Preservation Commission      Development Services  Memo No.
22-003
       

Date: 01/31/2022
To: Historic Preservation Commission
Thru: Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director and Historic Preservation

Officer (HPO)
From: Harley Mehlhorn, Associate Planner
Subject:Recommendation for Chandler to become a Certified Local Government

(CLG) 

Proposed Motion:
Move Historic Preservation Commission recommend City Council approve
Chandler to become a Certified Local Government (CLG) 

Background/Discussion
In 1980, Congress established a framework for local preservation programs
through an amendment to the National Historic Preservation Act. This program
recognizes political subdivisions of Arizona, such as cities and counties, which
may apply to the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) to become Certified
Local Governments (CLG's). In order to be eligible to become a CLG, a political
subdivision must have an enabling historic preservation ordinance, a method of
surveying historic resources and a commission capable of conduction HP
business that meets at least three (3) times per year. In Fall of 2020, the City of
Chandler took these steps with the Council approval of Ordinance 4936. The final
remaining step to become a CLG for Chandler is to submit an application to
SHPO. There is no fiscal cost associated with the CLG designation, and it offers a
variety of benefits to municipalities which opt in. 

CLG certification allows cities to apply for grant funding through SHPO from both
State and Federal programs. Each application has an allowance of up to
twenty-thousand dollars ($20,000) that may be used directly or to support historic
preservation efforts. In addition to access to funding, CLG designation also allows
municipalities to recommend and weigh in on State Register of Historic Places and



the National Register of Historic Places designation applications within its
jurisdiction. Further, the CLG certification allows for cities to also weigh in more
heavily on Section 106 matters, a federal act that requires projects of Federal
funding to first consider the impacts on historic or archeological resources.

Finding no additional costs beyond minimal staff time investment
and noted benefits, staff recommends Historic Preservation Commission
recommend City Council approve Chandler to become a Certified Local
Government (CLG).

 



ITEM  3 

Historic Preservation Commission      Development Services  Memo No.
HPC22-001
       

Date: 01/31/2022
To: Historic Preservation Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator

David de la Torre, Planning Manager
From: Susan Fiala, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH21-0093 Celoni Hospitality LLC, DBA Recreo

Proposed Motion:
Move Historic Preservation Commission approve PLH21-0093 Celoni Hospitality
LLC, DBA Recreo architectural plan review for new signage subject to conditions
as recommended by Planning staff

Background/Discussion
On March 24, 2021, the Historic Preservation Commission reviewed and approved
an application to modify the front facade, expand the indoor serving area, and
renovate the rear patio, which included the installation of a shipping container, in
the space that was formerly occupied by El Zocalo Mexican Grill.  

The applicant is now requesting approval for three new signs; two on the San
Marcos Place street frontage and one on the detached office/shipping container
which faces west towards the alley. 

VW Bug: 1.

Size: 5’-0”  x 6’-10” for approximate total of 34 square feet. Extends 5 ft. from
the wall face.
Materials: The sign consists of the front half of a VW beetle, exposed neon
elements applied to profile of car elements, tire/hubcabs, and illumination
behind the windshield’s color translucent vinyl application.  
Location:  The sign is proposed to be installed on exterior of façade between
two windows over the colonnade.  The sign will be attached with four thru
bolts and one  ½ inch hole for power source.



bolts and one  ½ inch hole for power source.

Recreo (front):2.

Size: 9’-6” x 1’-3” for approximate total of 12 square feet. 
Material:  Aluminum reverse pan-channel letters with logo artwork routed out
of face with ½ inch push-thru plex with applied translucent vinyl and exposed
neon to match Recreo logo. 
Location: The sign is proposed to be mounted on raceway and installed
under building overhang.

Recreo (rear):3.

Size: 9’-6” x 1’-3” for approximate total of 12 square feet.
Material:  Aluminum reverse pan channel letters with logo artwork routed out
of face with ½” push-thru plex with translucent vinyl. 
Location:  The sign is proposed to be mounted on raceway attached to top of
western roof line of the new shipping container/detached office facing facing
west towards the alley.

Total signage area of the three signs is approximately 58 square feet.

City Center District (CCD) Sign Code:
Only signage which is surface-mounted may be permitted on the side or rear
elevation of a building, provided however, that such elevation is improved in an
architectural manner similar to the front elevation of the building. The design of
such signage shall comply with the standards and requirements for
surface-mounted signs above the colonnade as set forth herein. 39-9.18 CCD-City
Center District.A.2.

The use of neon as a means of illumination, whether internal or external to a sign
face, shall be permitted at the rate not to exceed (1) such sign above the
colonnade per business occupant. 39-9.18 CCD -City Center District.A.9.

Signs shall be mounted flush, angled, bowed, or perpendicular to the wall surface,
and where possible, be centered horizontally over the storefront. Irrespective
method used for mounting, no sign shall extend above the top of the wall parapet,
nor be mounted on any roof or roof fascia. No sign shall extend more than four (4)
feet from the exterior face of the building wall, and no sign shall overlap any
window, door, or architecture feature. Maximum Sign face area for any sign
mounted perpendicular to the exterior face of the building shall be twenty-four (24)
square feet. 39-9 CCD-City Center District.B.1.b



No more than one (1) sign per business occupant shall be permitted. 39-9
CCD-City Center District.B.1.d

Maximum Sign Area:
The CCD does not provide a maximum allowable sign area square footage. Staff
is providing sign area standards for the Regional Commercial (C-3) zoning district
as well as previously approved signs within the CCD for comparison purposes.

Sign standards for C-3 (Regional Commercial) zoning district: 
Signs shall not exceed two square feet for each linear foot of business
frontage, no sign shall exceed 250 square feet in area. 
If the subject site were zoned C-3, the maximum square footage allowed
would be 100 square feet.  The proposed total signage area is 81 square feet
(58 square feet per this request and 23 square feet permitted). To note, two
additional signs, outside of the purview of this request, comply with the CCD
sign regulations, received sign permit aprpoval, and total 23 square feet. The
total sign area of Recreo is nearly 20 square feet below the maximum allowed.

In comparison to previously approved signs in the CCD, Recreo's proposed total
signage area of 81 square feet is less than other CCD businesses: 

Santan Brewery – 171 total square feet of sign area – projecting sign
extends 7 feet from wall; approved March, 2017 (projecting sign) and March,
2021 (neon signs)
Uncommon/Tipsy Egg – 268.61 total square feet of sign area - Uncommon
sign projects 10 feet from wall, Tipsy Egg projects 6 feet 10 inches from
wall (approved May, 2019)
Cheba Hut – 87 total square feet of sign area (approved via sign permits)
PedalHaus – 114 total square feet of sign area - rear alley facing sign
(approved July, 2021)
The Stanley- AirBNB - 29 square feet of sign located above the parking
canopy (approved July, 2021)

Requested Deviations from Code: 
The next sign code regulation states that no sign shall extend above the top
of the wall parapet, nor be mounted on any roof or roof fascia. The proposed
'Recreo' sign on the shipping container is the second request to install a sign
above a roof fascia in the CCD. The first sign approved by the HPC was a
roof mounted sign for The Stanley AirBNB in July 2021. The proposed above
roof parapet/roof line sign to be installed on the detached office/shipping
container would be on structure that is not a historic building. The shipping
container/detached office is an ancillary structure to the primary historic
building. Furthermore, the proposed sign would not face the historic square



building. Furthermore, the proposed sign would not face the historic square
and would be set back from the alley/rear property line. Planning finds the
proposed roof mounted sign would be installed on an ancillary structure which
is does not contribute to the historic value presented by the primary building.
Also, the proposed sign size is minimal and would be located within the rear
portion of the subject.
Sign code allows one sign utilizing neon illumination, whereas two signs, VW
Bug and Recreo (front elevation), are proposed to use neon. Planning staff
finds that these two signs, although detached from each other, create a single
sign image.
Sign code allows a four foot projection from the wall face. The VW bug sign
projects five feet from the wall face with a height of 6 feet 10 inches. In
comparison to the previously approved signs projecting from the wall face,
this proposed sign is less in projection than Santan Brewery and Tipsy Egg
each having a sign projecting at 7 feet and the Uncommon's projection is 10
feet from the wall face. Planning staff finds the request is consistent with the
approved projecting signs in the CCD.

Planning staff finds that the proposed signs listed above maintain consistency with
the historic character of the square and is a modern complement to the Early
Twentieth Century Commercial architectural style of the City Center District. 

National Register of Historic Places:
The subject building is a contributing resource that is located within the Chandler
Commercial Historic District. The Chandler Commercial Historic District is listed on
the National Register of Historic Places.  Built in 1912, the two-story Monroe
Building/Parkway Theater was constructed on two twenty-five foot lots and is the
oldest commercial structure in Chandler. 

Recommendation:
Upon finding the proposed exterior signs to complement the existing Early
Twentieth Century Commercial style of architecture, Planning staff recommends
the Historic Preservation Committee approve PLH21-0093 Celoni Hospitality LLC
DBA Recreo, located at 28 South San Marcos Place, subject to the following
conditions. 

Development shall be in substantial conformance with Exhibits A and B, kept
on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH21-0093
Celoni Hospitality LLC DBA Recreo.  

1.

Separate sign permits shall be submitted for all signs.2.

 



Attachments
Vicinity maps 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Site Plan for reference 



S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

W BOSTON ST

W BUFFALO ST

S C
AL

IFO
RN

IA 
ST

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E BOSTON ST

E BUFFALO ST

W COMMONWEALTH AV

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

S O
RE

GO
N 

ST

W PRIVATE

E COMMONWEALTH AV

S S
AN

 M
AR

CO
S P

L
N 

SA
N 

MA
RC

OS
 PL

S W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST

N 
PR

IVA
TE

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site
Ar

izo
na

 A
ve

.

Proposed Project Details
28 S. San Marcos Pl.
Request to review new signage

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Boston St.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD

CCD

PLH21-0093 Celoni Hospitality LLC DBA Recreo ´

^

PAD CCDCCD/PAD

MF-2

PAD

C-3C-2PAD

PAD

CCD

PAD
CCD/PAD

PAD

C-2

PAD

CCD/PAD

CC
D/

PA
D



S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

W BOSTON ST

W BUFFALO ST

S C
AL

IFO
RN

IA 
ST

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E BOSTON ST

E BUFFALO ST

W COMMONWEALTH AV

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

S O
RE

GO
N 

ST

W PRIVATE

E COMMONWEALTH AV

S S
AN

 M
AR

CO
S P

L
N 

SA
N 

MA
RC

OS
 PL

S W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST

N 
PR

IVA
TE

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site
Ar

izo
na

 A
ve

.

Proposed Project Details
28 S. San Marcos Pl.
Request to review new signage

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Boston St.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD

CCD

PLH21-0093 Celoni Hospitality LLC DBA Recreo ´

^

PAD CCDCCD/PAD

MF-2

PAD

C-3C-2PAD

PAD

CCD

PAD
CCD/PAD

PAD

C-2

PAD

CCD/PAD

CC
D/

PA
D



January 10, 2022 
 
Celoni Hospitality, LLC    
DBA: RECREO 
28 S. San Marcos Place 
Chandler Arizona, 85225 
Attention: Chris Field and/or Niels Kreipke 
Email: nkreipke@desertvikingaz.com 
Phone:  480-216-1195 
 
 RE: Tenant Signage for RECREO in Downtown Chandler 
 
 
To whom it may concern, 
 
 
RECREO restaurant, bar, patio and entertainment venue is designed as a throwback, fun and 
vibrant expression of recreo (meaning recess).  Throughout the interior and patio, there are 
numerous specific design concepts, memorabilia and vintage décor that hints and plays with 
the memories of sitting in class and waiting for recess to start so one can run out to the 
playground to escape the everyday routine.   
 
Branding is vital to the concept and the expression of what the business is about.  As you will 
see in the logo, the VW Bug is the center point of the concept and a representation of a weeble 
wobble/rocker that one often finds in a playground or park setting.  The use of a real historic 
1967 VW Bug cut in half and retro fitted into a building sign, is not only consistent with the 
business logo and branding, but it also tells a story right from the start that RECREO is a fun and 
creative establishment worth discovering and exploring.   
 
Since the Downtown Chandler redevelopment efforts started approximately 25 years ago, 
social media has played a larger and larger role in the success of businesses every year.  This 
sign package will be a wonderful opportunity for visitors and customers to take pictures, post 
and comment on, drawing not only greater attention to RECREO but the Downtown Chandler 
area as a whole.  
 
The car itself is no larger in scale than the neighboring Santan Brewery neon bird sign, smaller 
than The Uncommon and Tipsy Egg signs, and is consistent with the objective of making the 
area an entertaining fun and vibrant area with an array of signage setting Downtown Chandler 
apart from other areas.  The proposed signage also helps stay competitive with Gilberts 
downtown area.  Furthermore, the antique store on Arizona Avenue has already utilized a 
historic vehicle in the sign package for the BBQ concept creating a unique and creative first 
impression for that business.   
 



Regarding the signage installation, the exposed neon RECREO letters will be attached to a 
raceway that will be hung to the underside of the roof overhang, thereby not creating 
additional penetrations into the brick and stucco building façade.  The raceway will be 90-95% 
covered by the letters and more than likely not seen.  The VW Bug will be cut in half, engine 
removed and will sit on the exterior of the façade using four ¾” thru bolts and one ½” hole for 
the power source, which is easily repairable should the concept change in the future.  All 
electric transformers and wiring will be internal to the vehicle and not visible.  The colors as 
shown in the attachment is consistent with the logo and branding of the concept, while 
complimenting the building colors.   
 
Regarding the signage request for the alley side of the property, the Downtown Chandler 
Community Partnership and property owners are working hard on a plan to clean up the alley 
to make it more pedestrian friendly.  The hope is to consolidate and relocate trash and kitchen 
oil bins, add string lights, add public art installations and enhance the overall esthetics.  This is 
one of the main reasons we installed the shipping container, Santan Brewery added wall art, 
and efforts have already started to relocate trash.   RECREO also added a large opening in the 
alley side wall so that it can activate the alley with a food truck, have events or come up with 
other fresh and inviting ideas to activate the alley side of the properties.  With this in mind, it is 
beneficial to add building signage that is consistent in quality on the back as it is in the front.  
We are therefore proposing an exposed neon letter RECREO sign identical to the front building 
sign to be installed on top of the shipping container.  Locating the sign on top is consistent with 
the “OVERSTREET” sign already in Downtown Chandler and since the shipping container is not 
historic but a current installation, setting the signage more consistent with new development 
makes more sense.  Improving the back side of the properties and connecting to the 
developments and businesses to the west is a key component in expanding the overall 
customer and visitors experience.   
 
Thank you for your consideration and support.  
 
 
Best, 
 
 
 
Niels Kreipke 
 



Copyright © 2021 by EJ Street Design. This drawing, as an instrument of professional 

service, is and shall remain, the property of EJ Street Design. No part of this drawing may 

be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form without the prior 

written approval of EJ Street Design.  When files are used in part or whole in a derivative 

work, copyright notice on all drawings must also include "EJ Street Design."

PROJECT

CLIENT

RECREO

Desert Viking Development

3002 East Washington Street

Phoenix, AZ 85034

DATE

PROJECT #

PHASE

DRAWN BY

11.22.2021

21-19 

SD

G. Dupps

The colors shown are approximations of those that will be reproduced. For more 
accurate representation, refer to color chips and specifications.

SCALE

REVISIONS

SHEET

APPROVAL / DATEAs Noted

1) 11.30.2021  

2)

3)
Main Sign -1P: 480.307.0916 • www.ejstreetdesign.com

PO Box 51331 • Phoenix, Arizona 85076

EXTERIOR BUILDING SIGNAGE - MAIN SIGN

1
8
'-
2
"±

15'-0"±

1
4
'-
8
"±

2
5
'-
8
"±

A
Scale: 3/16" = 1'-0"

Elevation View – Proposed Location

B
Scale: 3/16" = 1'-0"

Side View

SusanFi
Typewriter
EXHIBIT B



Copyright © 2021 by EJ Street Design. This drawing, as an instrument of professional 

service, is and shall remain, the property of EJ Street Design. No part of this drawing may 

be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form without the prior 

written approval of EJ Street Design.  When files are used in part or whole in a derivative 

work, copyright notice on all drawings must also include "EJ Street Design."

PROJECT

CLIENT

RECREO

Desert Viking Development

3002 East Washington Street

Phoenix, AZ 85034

DATE

PROJECT #

PHASE

DRAWN BY

11.22.2021

21-19

SD

G. Dupps

The colors shown are approximations of those that will be reproduced. For more 
accurate representation, refer to color chips and specifications.

SCALE

REVISIONS

SHEET

APPROVAL / DATEAs Noted

1) 11.30.2021

2)

3)
Main Sign -2P: 480.307.0916 • www.ejstreetdesign.com

PO Box 51331 • Phoenix, Arizona 85076

EXTERIOR BUILDING SIGNAGE - MAIN SIGN
7
'-
7
"±

1
'-
3
"

5'-0"

VIF

9'-6"

Aluminum raceway element 
attached to underside of building 
overhang as required

Aluminum reverse pan-channel 
letters with logo artwork routed out 
of face - mounted to raceway as 
required 

1/2” push-thru plex with applied 
translucent vinyl with exposed neon- 
color to match RECREO logo

Single color translucent vinyl (TBD) 
applied to back side of windshield 
(illuminated from back of windshield) 

1967 Volswagen Beetle customized 
as necessary into wall identification 
sign - painted to match RECREO 
logo car color

Exposed magenta neon elements 
applied to profile of car elements

Exposed yellow and turquiose neon 
applied to tire/hubcaps

Headlights to have internal LED 
illumination (color/style TBD)

RECREO Letters: ±14 Sq.Ft.

Car Art Element: ±35 Sq.Ft

A
Scale: 1/2" = 1'-0"

Overall Dimensions

Side View

Front View

SusanFi
Line

SusanFi
Typewriter
6 ft. 10 inches

SusanFi
Typewriter
5 ft. projection x 6' 10 " height = 34 sq. ft. approx.

SusanFi
Rectangle

SusanFi
Typewriter
1 ft. 3 in. x 9 ft. 6 in.= 12 sq. ft. approx

SusanFi
Rectangle

SusanFi
Line

SusanFi
Line

SusanFi
Typewriter
5 ft. 2 inches

SusanFi
Line



Copyright © 2021 by EJ Street Design. This drawing, as an instrument of professional 

service, is and shall remain, the property of EJ Street Design. No part of this drawing may 

be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form without the prior 

written approval of EJ Street Design.  When files are used in part or whole in a derivative 

work, copyright notice on all drawings must also include "EJ Street Design."

PROJECT

CLIENT

RECREO

Desert Viking Development

3002 East Washington Street

Phoenix, AZ 85034

DATE

PROJECT #

PHASE

DRAWN BY

11.22.2021

21-19 

SD

G. Dupps

The colors shown are approximations of those that will be reproduced. For more 
accurate representation, refer to color chips and specifications.

SCALE

REVISIONS

SHEET

APPROVAL / DATEAs Noted

1) 11.30.2021  

2)

3)
Rear SignP: 480.307.0916 • www.ejstreetdesign.com

PO Box 51331 • Phoenix, Arizona 85076

EXTERIOR BUILDING SIGNAGE - REAR SIGN

1
8
'-
1
"±

1
'-
3
"

9'-6"

5"±

A
Scale: 3/16" = 1'-0"

Rear Elevation – Proposed Location

B
Scale: 1/2" = 1'-0"

Sign mounted to top of container

Current conditions of shipping container

Overall Dimensions

Aluminum reverse pan-channel 
letters with logo artwork routed 
out of face - mounted to raceway 
as required 

1/2” push-thru plex with applied 
translucent vinyl - color to match 
RECREO logo

Aluminum raceway element 
attached to top of shipping 
container as required



 



susanfi
Typewriter
For Reference Only

SusanFi
Rectangle

SusanFi
Rectangle

SusanFi
Arrow


	Agenda
	AI 1527 Meeting Minutes of July 29, 2021, Historic Preservation Commission
	       ATT_July 29, 2021 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting Minutes
	AI 1566 Recommendation for Chandler to become a Certified Local Government (CLG) 
	AI 1524 PLH21-0093 Celoni Hospitality LLC DBA Recreo
	       ATT_Vicinity maps
	PLH21-0093.pdf
	PLH21-0093-air-photo.pdf

	       ATT_Exhibit A 
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	brand colors.pdf
	RECREO_BuildingSignage 1.10.22.pdf

	       ATT_Site Plan for reference

